Public Document Pack



Planning

Monday, 10 June 2019

Committee

MINUTES

Present:

Councillor Michael Chalk (Chair), and Councillors Brandon Clayton, Andrew Fry, Bill Hartnett, Nyear Nazir, Gareth Prosser, Jennifer Wheeler and Anthony Lovell

Also Present:

Officers:

Helena Plant, Emily Farmer, Paul Lester, Steve Edden and Amar Hussain

Democratic Services Officer:

Sarah Sellers

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillor Gemma Monaco and Councillor Roger Bennett. Councillor Anthony Lovell attended as substitute for Councillor Monaco.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON 10TH APRIL 2019

RESOLVED that

The Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee on 10th April 2019 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

4. UPDATE REPORTS

The published Update Reports for the applications were noted.

Chair

Committee

5. APPLICATION 19/00168/OUT - THE CHILDRENS CENTRE HAWTHORN ROAD BATCHLEY REDDITCH B97 6NQ - REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Outline application for demolition of existing structure and erection of two no. two bedroom affordable dwellings with associated infrastructure.

The application was for outline planning permission for the demolition of the former children's centre building and construction of 2 two bedroomed affordable dwellings on Council owned land. It was noted that all matters were reserved for future consideration, namely access, layout, scale, appearance and landscaping.

Whilst the detail would be subject to a further application, Officers were able to provide an indicative plan showing one potential configuration of the proposed dwellings which included 4 parking spaces for the dwellings accessed from Hawthorn Road.

It was noted that there was a presumption in favour of sustainable development, and Members were referred to paragraph 92 of the NPPF and the guidance contained therein that in making decisions planning authorities should guard against the unnecessary loss of valued community facilities and services.

It was noted that Redditch Play Council that had previously operated a nursery from the former children's centre had closed in August 2018. Officers were of the view that there were other comparable community facilities in the area and that therefore the application had not been found to reduce the ability of the community to meet its day to day needs.

There had been no objections from consultees and the application was recommended for approval.

In response to questions from Members it was clarified that the four parking spaces shown on the indicative plan were intended for the use of the occupants of the dwellings. Members pointed out that lack of parking was an issue in the vicinity of the application site and asked that consideration be given by the applicant to whether any communal parking spaces could be incorporated into the final plans.

RESOLVED THAT

Having regard to the development plan and to all other material considerations, planning permission be GRANTED subject to

Committee

the conditions and informatives set out on pages 12 to 15 of the main agenda.

6. APPLICATION 19/00308/FUL - 5 TRAFFORD PARK TRESCOTT ROAD SMALLWOOD REDDITCH B98 7AH - THE CHARITIES PROPERTY FUND

Subdivision and Change of Use of part of Unit 5 from Class A1 (Retail) to Class A1/Class A3 and external alterations

Officers outlined the application for the subdivision of Unit 5 to create an additional unit with a mixed A1/A3 use.

In response to questions from Members officers confirmed that:-

- The residual two thirds of the unit would retain an A1 use.
- That there were no policy reasons in this location for saturation of similar uses to be a consideration.
- That the type of food on offer was expected to be the serving of hot drinks and re-heated food and as such no ventilation system would be required.

RESOLVED THAT

Having regard to the development plan and to all other material considerations, planning permission be GRANTED subject to the conditions and informatives set out on pages 21 to 22 of the main agenda.

7. APPLICATION 19/00320/FUL - LAND AT CHURCH ROAD PUMPHOUSE LANE WEBHEATH REDDITCH - A AND D CUTLER

Residential development of 9 bungalows

Officers outlined the application for the construction of 4 three bedroomed bungalows and 5 two bedroomed bungalows on the site which forms part of the Webheath Strategic site under Policy 48 of the Borough of Redditch Local Plan no 4.

In response to questions from Members officers confirmed that:-

- The visibility spay on the junction with Church Road had been found by the Highways Authority to be acceptable.
- That the construction management plan referred to in proposed condition 22 dealt with various aspects regarding

Committee

the operation of the site and gave the Planning Authority a mechanism to regulate these matters.

Members expressed concerns regarding the routes construction traffic would follow, the problems there had been with other construction sites in the vicinity regarding mud on the road and the potential disturbance that could be caused by construction activities to the surrounding residents.

Following further debate Members requested that additional wording be added to the text of proposed condition 22 to cover the following elements:-

- (1) An extra heading (under (i)) for the management of construction traffic:
- (2) Greater detail as to the requirements of the Planning Authority regarding wheel washing (e);
- (3) That officers provide some guidance regarding the usual working hours for construction sites in Redditch under "Hours of Working" (h);

And that authority be delegated to officers to make the changes outlined.

RESOLVED THAT

Having regard to the development plan and to all other material considerations, planning permission be GRANTED subject to:-

- 1. the conditions and infomatives set out on pages 29 to 36 of the main agenda; and
- 2. that authority be delegated to officers to amend the wording of condition 22 in accordance with the comments of Members set out above.

8. APPLICATION 19/00339/FUL - 18 HATFIELD CLOSE MATCHBOROUGH REDDITCH B98 0AD - MR AND MRS FAGAN

First floor side extension over existing garage and two storey rear extension replacing existing conservatory. New corner window to kitchen.

Mrs Nicki Fagan (applicant) and Mr James Stephen (agent) addressed the Committee under the Council's public speaking rules.

Committee

RESOLVED THAT

Having regard to the development plan and to all other material considerations, planning permission be GRANTED subject to the conditions and infomatives set out on pages 39 to 40 of the main agenda.

9. APPLICATION 19/00454/FUL - UNIT 21 LAKESIDE INDUSTRIAL ESTATE NEW MEADOW ROAD LAKESIDE REDDITCH B98 8YW

Change of use from Sui-Generis use to D2 assembly and leisure use

Officers outlined the application and referred Members to the relevant policy issues.

It was noted that land at the industrial site was located in a Primarily Employment Area as designated under Policy 24 the Local Plan, and as such a change to D2 use would be contrary to policy.

The unit had been vacated by the previous occupiers in November 2018. The Council's Employment Land Monitoring SPG recommended a minimum period of 2 years and 3 months would be a reasonable time to attract a genuine new employment opportunity, and there was nothing to suggest that an employment user could not be found with appropriate marketing.

Members were also referred to the Town Centre and Retail Hierarchy Policy (Policy 30) and paragraph 86 of the NPPF. As a "Town Centre Use", Class D2 was intended to be located in existing town centre sites. No sequential testing had been carried out by the Applicant and officers were aware of a number of other policy compliant locations in the Town Centre where suitably sized units to meet the Applicant's needs were vacant.

In conclusion, a change of use to D2 was contrary to policy and officers were recommending refusal.

Mr Jon Brotherton on behalf of the Applicant, and Mr Hayden Mosely (Applicant) addressed the Committee under the Council's public speaking rules.

During the debate Members commented on the points raised by the public speakers including that the Applicant's gym business, Elite Fitness, already occupied the adjoining two units, and the application would allow the business to expand without having to relocate and would provide employment for additional staff. It was noted that this needed to be balanced against the policy issues, and the fact that the unit had only been vacant for a short period.

Committee

Following further discussion, two recommendations were proposed and seconded as follows:-

- 1. An alternative recommendation that planning permission be granted given that the applicant already occupied the adjoining two units.
- 2. That planning permission be refused as per the officer's recommendation on page 46 of the agenda.

In accordance with voting procedure, the vote on recommendation 2 was taken first and was defeated. The vote on recommendation 1 was taken and carried.

With regard to conditions, Members indicated that the same conditions which applied to the existing units occupied by Elite Fitness should be extended to Unit 21.

RESOLVED THAT

Having regard to the development plan and to all other material considerations, planning permission be GRANTED subject to the conditions set out below.

Conditions

- 1) The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the grant of this permission.
 - Reason: In accordance with the requirements of Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
- 2) The development hereby approved shall be used for purposes that fall within Class D2 (Gymnasium) of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) and for no other purpose.
 - Reason: To define the terms under which permission for this development is granted
- 3) The development hereby approved shall be implemented in accordance with the following plans:

Committee

Site location plan dated 4th April 2019 Block plan dated 4th April 2019

Reason: To accurately define the permission for the avoidance of doubt

4) The use hereby approved shall operate only between the hours of 07:00 to 21:00 Monday to Friday, 09:00 to 17:00 Saturdays, and 10:00 to 16:00 Sundays, Bank and Public Holidays.

Reason: In the interests of nearby residential amenity.

10. APPLICATION 19/00462/FUL - METTIS AEROSPACE WINDSOR ROAD ENFIELD REDDITCH B97 6EF

<u>Demolition of existing building and erection of replacement B2 building</u>

Officers outlined the application and referred the Members to the Update Report and the response from WRS regarding the issue of land contamination. It was noted that WRS had requested that the new wording on the Update Report be used for Condition 3 in place of the original wording on page 57 and 58 of the main agenda.

Officers also confirmed an alteration to the wording of Condition 7 regarding the Flood Response Plan.

RESOLVED THAT

Having regard to the development plan and to all other material considerations, planning permission be GRANTED subject to the conditions and informatives set out on pages 57 to 60 of the main agenda and to the following changes:-

- 1. That the wording of condition 3 on pages 57 to 58 of the main agenda be replaced with the wording set out in the Update Report; and
- 2. That condition 7 on page 59 of the main agenda be worded as follows:-

"The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the proposed attenuation measures have been completed in accordance with Drainage Plan Rev P01.

Committee

Monday, 10 June 2019

Reason: In order to ensure satisfactory drainage conditions."

The Meeting commenced at 7.00 pm and closed at 8.40 pm